

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee

Friday, 21st September, 2018

MEETING OF STRATEGIC POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Members present: Alderman Rodgers (Chairperson);
the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor McDonough-Brown);
Aldermen Browne, Convery and Haire;
Councillors Attwood, Beattie, Campbell, Carson, Craig,
Garrett, Graham, Hutchinson, Long, McAllister,
O'Donnell, Reynolds and Walsh.

Also attended: Councillor Mc Reynolds.

In attendance: Mrs S. Wylie, Chief Executive;
Mr. R. Cregan, Director of Finance and Resources;
Mr. J. Walsh, City Solicitor;
Mr. G. Millar, Director of Property and Projects;
Mr. N. Grimshaw, Director of City and
Neighbourhood Services;
Ms. G. Long, Commissioner for Resilience;
Mr. S. McCrory, Democratic Services Manager; and
Mr. J. Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies

Apologies for inability to attend were reported from Alderman Spence and Councillor McAteer.

Minutes

The minutes of the meetings of 5th, 7th and 9th July (x2) 1st, 17th (x2) and 31st August were taken as read and signed as correct. It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its meeting on 3rd September.

Declarations of Interest

Councillor Long declared an interest in relation to item 7d – Area Working Update insofar as he was a member of the Bloomfield Church. Councillor Reynolds declared an interest in respect of item 7b – Physical Programme Update and left the meeting whilst this item was under consideration.

Presentations

POBAL

The Committee was reminded that, in pursuance of its decision of 17th August, Ms J. Muller and Ms M. Delargey were in attendance to provide a presentation in relation to Pobal's research it had carried out entitled "Further and Higher Education,

Training and Employment Experience of Past Pupils of Irish Medium Education in Belfast – 1970s to present.

The Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, welcome the deputation to the meeting.

Ms Muller advised the Committee that the research had been funded by Belfast City Council under its capacity building programme. It had been undertaken due to the lack of baseline information on this issue and because of the growth of Irish Medium Education over the years. She indicated that POBAL wished to develop best practice in strategic planning and complete community capacity building in the city and recognised the important role of the council in this. She then referred to the figures which had been issued by the Department of Education regarding the number of pupils participating in funded Irish Medium Education.

Ms Muller then highlighted the main findings from the respondents to the survey questions in relation to: the areas in which they lived; their age; their use of the Irish language; and what would help them use the language in their everyday lives. Ms Delargey outlined the findings regarding the further, higher education and training which the respondents had undertaken; the language of the courses; their employment since leaving school; and the use of the language in the workplace.

The deputation concluded by indicating that the research report contained six specific recommendations which they were requesting the council to adopt.

They then answered a number of questions from the Members, during which the point was made that the Council had recently appointed an Irish Language Officer and discussions in relation to the recommendations would need to be undertaken initially between that officer and the City Solicitor before any decision could be made.

After discussion, the Committee agreed that the City Solicitor undertake an assessment of the recommendations set out in the POBAL research paper entitled "Further and Higher Education, Training and Employment Experience of Past Pupils of Irish Medium Education in Belfast – 1970s to Present" and report back to the Committee in due course.

Restricted Items

The information contained in the reports associated with the following five items is restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of the Press and public from the Committee meeting during discussion of these items as, due to the nature of the items, there would be a disclosure of exempt information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the Local Government Act (NI) 2014.

Area-Based Festivals Funding

The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 18th May, it had agreed to fund the following summer diversionary events and education programmes:

- Féile an Phobail (Festival) - £100,000;
- Twaddell Woodvale Residents' Association (Woodvale Festival) - £100,000
- NI Alternatives (East Belfast Community Festival) - £50,000;
- New Lodge Arts (New Lodge Festival) - £40,000;
- Markets Development Association (Diversionary Activities) - £10,000;
- Belfast South Community Resources - £26,521; and
- Ulster-Scotch Heirskip Coouncil/Ulster-Scots Community Network – community education programme, community visualisation programme and 3 year strategic planning process for new festival) - £80,000.

It had been agreed also that:

- the funding applications be subject to due diligence, appropriate legal agreements and to evaluations being undertaken;
- To ensure transparency in future years, to establish an open call diversionary programme with an agreed budget; and
- That Council officers engage with the groups that were not allocated support to discuss alternative funding opportunities.

It was reported, given the tight timescales in relation to a number of the projects, officers had been working closely with the groups to develop their project proposals and work through due diligence and appropriate legal agreements as agreed by the Members. That had involved officers from a number of Services within the Council.

The Committee was advised that, to date, four of the proposals had been approved and a further two had reached the stage of due diligence where funding agreements could be prepared. Those were Belfast South Community Resources and the Ulster-Scotch Heirskip Coouncil/Ulster-Scots Community Network.

It was pointed out that the Committee, at its meeting on 17th August, had agreed to defer consideration of these applications until this meeting.

It was pointed out also that, given the challenging timescales involved with working with groups to get those requests for funding through satisfactory due diligence, many elements of the programme for Belfast South Community Resources had already commenced. The group was aware that this work had commenced without a funding agreement with the Council, but it had asked the Committee to approve retrospective funding that took place between the point of the previous approval of this funding, that is, 4th June, 2018, and the date of the funding agreement. All retrospective expenditure would be subject to the same monitoring evaluation as detailed in the funding agreement with the group.

The Committee was advised further that the proposal from Northern Ireland Alternatives for Area-Based festival funding for east Belfast had been withdrawn formally on 10th September, 2018 and the Committee was being requested to consider whether the £50,000 originally earmarked for that event should be reallocated to support the potential work associated with the Bloomfield Walkway site.

After discussion, it was

Moved by Councillor Reynolds,
Seconded by Councillor Hutchinson,

That the Committee agrees to authorise the release of Funding Agreements to the Belfast South Community Resources, including the retrospective expenditure as outlined, and the Ulster-Scotch Heirskip Council/Ulster-Scots Community Network, with 90% of the funding being paid upfront and the remaining 10% would be paid following satisfactory completion of monitoring and evaluation returns.

On a vote by show of hands, twelve Members voted for the proposal and four against and it was declared carried.

The Committee agreed that the funding which had originally been earmarked for the East Belfast Community Festival be re-allocated to support the potential works associated with the Bloomfield Walkway site.

Moved by Councillor Reynolds,
Seconded by Councillor Craig,

That the decisions in relation to the Area Based Festivals funding, in accordance with Standing Order 47(a) (2) (a), be not subject to call-in, on the basis that an unreasonable delay could be prejudicial to the Council's or the public's interest.

On a vote by show of hands twelve Members voted for the proposal and five against and it was declared carried.

Proposals for City Recovery Investment Fund

The Committee considered a report which provided an update following the fire at Primark Bank Buildings and measures that the Council was taking to support city centre economic recovery. The Chief Executive then provided the Members with a detailed presentation in relation to the current status of the building, the main elements of the City Recovery and Investment Programme; the expert advice which had been provided by external organisations, the key objectives of a wayfinding strategy, the Business Support Programme, including eligibility and the next steps and those finances which had already been committed, and what additional resources would be required for a medium term recovery plan.

After a lengthy discussion, the Committee agreed:

- the terms and objectives for a City Recovery Investment Programme and approved the expenditure of £410,000 of the £500,000 which the Council had previously allocated by the Committee;
- that an additional £75,000 be allocated to the Specified Reserve to assist with a medium term recovery plan from now until Christmas;
- that a meeting be sought with the Secretary of State and the Civil Service to ascertain what funding could be made available to assist with the recovery programme; and
- in accordance with Standing Order 47(a) (2) (a), that the decisions be not subject to call-in on the basis that an unreasonable delay could be prejudicial to the Council's or the public's interest.

The Committee agreed also that any forecasted year underspend which the Committee would be considering in November be used to replenish the Council's Reserves in the first instance by £1.25 million.

It was noted that the Council had adopted the recommendation of the Committee, at its meeting of 31st August, to delegate authority to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee to take any decisions on the issues relating to the Bank Buildings and to approve any expenditure from the aforementioned specified reserve.

Update on the implementation of the Independent Review of Leisure

The Committee considered a report which had been prepared in response to a Motion on leisure submitted to the Council, following which the Committee had requested that a report on delivery options, including an analysis and implications (in particular financial) of any proposal to bring leisure back in-house and to update the Members on the progress being made on the implementation of recommendations presented within the Independent Review of the Leisure Operating Model.

The Committee:

- noted the update on implementation of the recommendations in the independent report;
- endorsed the continued work of Council Officers, GLL and the Active Belfast Ltd Board to improve the leisure offering to all citizens of Belfast; and
- acknowledged the detrimental impact to the Leisure Development Programme, and the rate payer, in the event of the Council bringing the leisure operating model back in-house, and rule out any further consideration at this time.

City Region Growth Deal – Negotiating Position

The Committee considered a report in relation to the proposed Belfast Region City Deal negotiating position, including the Council's financial contribution and outlining the next steps in securing a City Deal for the region.

After discussion, the Committee agreed:

- the proposed Belfast Region City Deal negotiating position;
- the Council's overall contribution to the deal of £38m, for the development of the Destination Hub Visitor Attraction; and
- The attendance of the Lord Mayor, Party Group Leaders and the Chairperson of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee at a BRCD event in Westminster on 24th October, 2018.

Olympia Commercial Sites – Proposed Disposal

The Committee was reminded that, following the completion of the new Olympia Leisure Centre and Sports Village, two commercial sites had been created fronting onto the Boucher Road. The sites have been marketed and a number of offers had been received. Accordingly, approval was being sought for the appointment of a preferred bidder, to allow a period of due diligence on planning matters, followed by disposal, subject to planning permission being obtained.

The Committee agreed that Kirk Bryson be appointed as the preferred bidder for taking forward its 'Scheme A' for retail/leisure/food and beverage/apartments and thereafter to enter into a contract for disposal of the site, subject to planning permission and an agreed timeframe for development completion and other terms as agreed by the Estates Manager and Legal Services.

Matters referred back from Council/Motions

Motion - Sustainable Development Strategy

The Committee was minded that, at the meeting of the Council on 3rd September, the following, which had been proposed by Councillor McReynolds and seconded by Councillor Nicholl, was, in accordance with Standing Order 13(f), referred to the Committee for consideration:

"This Council recognises its important role in shaping a Belfast that is environmentally sustainable (as described in the Belfast Agenda). It recognises also the importance of thinking strategically and with a long-term aim of making Belfast meet the highest environmental standards, especially in the areas of energy, waste, transport, construction and resilience.

The Council agrees to establish both a Member-led Sustainable Development Think Tank and an officer steering group that meet regularly to support the development of the Council's Sustainable

Development Strategy and discuss implementing best practice from across Europe and globally.”

After discussion, the Committee noted the motion and agreed that, initially, a workshop be held prior to any decision being made on the establishment of a Member think tank and an Officers steering group.

Motion - Irish Women’s Hockey Team

The Committee was advised that, at the meeting of the Council on 3rd September, the following motion, which had been proposed by Councillor Attwood and seconded by the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor McDonough-Brown) had, in accordance with Standing Order 12(f), been referred to the Committee for consideration:

“This Council applauds the incredible achievement of the Irish Women’s Hockey team in winning a silver medal in the Hockey World Cup. The Council agrees to host a special civic reception to honour the team.”

The Committee was reminded that, at the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor had indicated that she would be hosting a reception in honour of the Team’s success and arrangements were currently being made. Accordingly, it was recommended that given that those arrangements were already being put in place, the Committee might wish to note the motion and take no further action.

The Committee agreed to this course of action.

Motion - Personal Independence Payment

The Committee was reminded that the Council, at its meeting on 2nd July, had passed the following motion on Personal Independence Payments, which had been proposed by Councillor McReynolds and seconded by the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor McDonough-Brown):

“This Council:

- *notes the importance of Personal Independence Payments to sustaining and maintaining the lives of many across Northern Ireland;*
- *notes with concern the many issues associated with undergoing assessments and the stress they can bring upon individuals;*
- *is concerned at the fall in figures of those receiving the benefit and the impact this is having on their lives;*
- *notes the link that exists between the drop in support provided and the ‘20m rule’ for the highest rate of PIP mobility support, as highlighted by ‘PIP – a step too far’ published by MS Society; and*

- *accordingly, agrees to write to the Minister for Work and Pensions, calling for an urgent review of the 20m rule and to engage with key stakeholders to find a more appropriate alternative.”*

The Committee was advised that a response had now been received from the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions. The Secretary of State had pointed out that the Department for Communities was responsible for delivering the Personal Independent Payment system in Northern Ireland and had suggested that the Council might wish to raise the issue with that Department. The Minister had then set out in detail the position in Great Britain to assist in addressing some of the issues raised within the motion.

The Committee noted the response from the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions.

Belfast Agenda/Strategic Issues

Smart Belfast Project Update

The Committee considered the following report:

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 The Smart Belfast programme encourages collaborative innovation between our universities, digital SMEs and the public sector in order to tackle urban challenges and support public service transformation. Delivery of the programme continues to be driven by a ‘pipeline’ of projects specifically chosen for their capacity to contribute to the Urban Innovation framework agreed by Members in 2017.

1.2 While the programme’s focus over recent months has been in the development of the digital and innovation pillar of the Belfast Region City Deal, the team have continued to deliver smart city project. This paper provides a short update and seeks Members’ approval on a number of emerging opportunities.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to:

- 1. Note that the Last Mile Freight Delivery Small Business Research Initiative (SBRI) competition winners will be announced on 18 October at the Belfast Waterfront.**
- 2. Note that following a Things Connected competition, two SMEs have been selected to work with Belfast City Council and Ulster University to develop prototypes to support our city centre services.**

3. To agree to work with the Titanic Foundation to appoint 'Hello Lamp Post' to develop a Maritime Mile demonstrator project.
4. To agree to support Hello Lamp Post's application to the €3 million SynchroniCity IT Open Call.
5. To agree to support a SME-consortium bid to the UK Space Agency's Call for Ideas bid for a major air quality project.
6. To note that the launch of the SBRI 'Managing Open Space' challenge will take place at the Belfast Big Data conference on 18 October and that the competition funding has been increased to £100,000.

3.0 Main report

- 3.1 The Smart Belfast programme encourages collaborative innovation between our universities, digital SMEs and the public sector to tackle urban challenges and support public service transformation It operate at three levels:

- (1) City and regional: Working with partners to inform the Belfast Region City Deal and supporting partners to bring innovative solutions to challenges identified in the Belfast Agenda (while at the same time supporting our digital companies to innovate);
- (2) Organisational transformation: Contributing to the Council's own service transformation by supporting the adoption of user-centric design; innovative procurement; and the application of data science and digital technologies.
- (3) Building the core foundations: Working with partners to build the strategic capabilities of our smart city (including supporting a city data platform, networks, skills sharing, joint delivery mechanisms, etc).

- 3.2 Delivery of the programme continues to be driven by a 'pipeline' of projects specifically chosen for their capacity to contribute to the Urban Innovation framework agreed by Members in 2017. The latest information on the programme is available at <http://smartbelfast.city>

- 3.3 Members are asked to note a number of current and planned pipeline projects:

3.4 Small Business Research Initiative (SBRI) on Last Mile Freight delivery

Following previous committee approval, the Council have been working with Dublin City Council, the NI Department for Infrastructure, Belfast BIDs, the NI Freight Transport

Association, on a €240,000 SBRI competition to encourage SMEs to develop proofs of concepts to help address the challenges of managing freight deliveries in both Dublin and Belfast city centres.

- 3.5 The successful companies have now been selected for Phase One with the winners to be publicly announced at the Big Data Belfast conference <http://www.bigdatabelfast.com> at Belfast Waterfront Hall on 18 October. The councils and their partner organisations will support the development of phase one projects which will explore a variety of approaches in both cities.

3.6 Things Connected challenge competition

Working with Ulster University, the UK Digital Catapult, and other Northern Ireland local councils, the Council is delivering a £30,000 competition to encourage companies to explore ways in which the new NI Things Connected network can be used to support city centre services and the citizen's experience of the public realm.

- 3.7 Two SMEs have now been chosen to go forward for the Belfast challenge. They will be supported by Ulster University to develop their ideas during an initial proof-of-concept phase in autumn 2018

- 3.8 Alongside the competition, the Council has also arranged free training for over 60 SMEs in using cloud-based Internet of Things technology. More than 50 companies have signed up to use the new network, meeting a key success metric set out by the funders Digital Catapult UK. The programme has already led to the creation of one new company.

3.9 Maritime Mile demonstrator project

The Smart Belfast team have also been exploring how IoT technologies could support the development of the city's 'maritime mile' (ie, from the Big Fish to the Pump House) – with a particular focus on how pedestrians and visitors plan their journeys and interact with the public realm. Working with the Titanic Foundation who have offered to provide match-funding, it is proposed that the Council appoint IoT company, 'Hello Lamp Post', to develop a small-scale demonstrator project that will use mobile phone technology to encourage pedestrians to interact with objects along the maritime mile. The learning from the demonstrator project

will then be used to inform the future use of smart technologies in public space and in a future smart district.

3.10 Hello Lamp Post are also planning to bid to a €3 million 'SynchroniCity' IoT fund to develop this work in Belfast and in Eindhoven. It is proposed that Belfast City Council provide a letter of support for this SME-led application.

3.11 UK Space Agency Call For Ideas

Urban air quality and its links to health outcomes is a growing issue at the national and international level. As Members will be aware, Belfast City Council is currently involved in a UK Space Agency funded project with a consortium of SMEs and the Belfast Health Trust. This Urban Healthy Living project seeks to model Belfast's traffic data and air quality to provide information on air pollution in a near real-time for city planners and citizens.

3.12 Building on this ongoing work, the SME consortium lead, Redshift Associates, are now bidding to the Space Agency for an even more ambitious air quality project. It is proposed that Belfast City Council provide a letter of support for their application.

3.13 SBRI challenge for managing open space

As Members will be aware, working with the NI Department for Justice, the Community Safety Partnership and other agencies, the Council successfully applied to the Northern Ireland SBRI challenge programme to support a £50,000 project to work with SMEs to develop innovative ways to support the better management of public space in the city (including parks). The Community Safety Unit have provided a further £10,000 to the competition. More recently, the Department for Finance offered an additional £50,000 for companies.

3.14 The concept has attracted substantial local and national interest. The Smart Dublin team are interested in exploring a similar challenge in and may be able to offer additional funding to the project to allow companies to also test their ideas in a number of parks in Dublin city centre. (This complementary offer has not yet been confirmed.)

3.15 The details of the £110,000 competition are now being finalised and will provide opportunities to explore how data science and digital technologies can support better understanding of the issues associated with safe open space.

3.16 The competition will be publicity launched to the SME community at the 'Big Data Belfast' conference on 18 October at Belfast Waterfront Hall. Successful companies will work with the Council and others to develop their proofs of concepts up until March 2019.

3.17 Financial & Resource Implications

The 2018/2019 programme budget for Smart Belfast was agreed by SP&R Committee in November 2017.

For the Maritime Mile demonstrator project, Titanic Foundation are offering to match Belfast City Council's contribution of £3,000.

3.18 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ Rural Needs Assessment

Equality and good relations implications will be taken into consideration and it is proposed that we will take this through equality screening; however, it is anticipated that any collaborative efforts should have a positive effect on Section 75 groups."

The Committee adopted the recommendations.

**Sports Development Strategy –
Guiding Principles**

The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting in January 2018, it had agreed that a Belfast City Council Sports Development Strategy and Associated Funding Strategy be developed. Subsequently, a follow up report had been submitted to the People and Communities Committee in June outlining proposed terms of reference and a timeline for development of the strategy and it had recommended these for approval to the Strategic Policy and Policy Committee.

The Committee had, subsequently, at its meeting in June, agreed the report would be submitted seeking agreement on guiding principles. These which would be high level and be used to support the development of the strategy.

The proposed guiding principles were as follows:

- The focus of the strategy will be to contribute to the outcomes of the Belfast Agenda in particular 'Everyone in Belfast fulfils their potential' and 'Everyone in Belfast experiences good health and wellbeing'.
- The strategy will consider how we can make the best use of existing limited resources to make the greatest possible community impact and create sustainability.

- The strategy will consider how we can provide support across the sports development continuum to increase access to, and participation in, organised sporting pathways to ensure maximum participation, especially among underrepresented groups.
- The strategy will consider the delivery and development of activities and programming whilst the use of facilities will be considered in the Council's Assets Strategy.
- The strategy will consider how we can develop partnerships to enhance and complement the support provided by other organisations and within Council to ensure there is no duplication of funding and that we maximise strategic outcomes and impact.
- The strategy will consider how the Council can support governing bodies and their clubs to ensure that the Council minimises risk to itself and members of sporting organisations. Support for Belfast based sports clubs which are not members of recognised governing bodies, will be considered once evidence of appropriately rigorous governance and safeguarding policies, procedures and practices is approved by Council.
- The strategy will recognise the different needs and demands across the city's neighbourhoods and will seek to contribute to identified priorities within these areas.

Following agreement of the guiding principles, officers would draft the strategy based on best practice, the support currently provided by the Council and pre-consultation with key stakeholders. This then would be brought back to the Committee for consideration and approval prior to public consultation.

The Committee agreed the proposed guiding principles for the Sports Development Strategy

Governance/Members' Issues

Amendment to Standing Order 24 – Voting and Divisions

The Democratic Services Manager reminded the Committee that, at its meeting on 17th August, it had agreed to receive a report on a suggestion that all votes at a Council meeting should be taken by way of a recorded vote. If the Committee was minded to agree to this, then it would require an amendment to Standing Order 24.

He explained that the Standing Order currently states that:

“Subject to any statutory provisions to the contrary, any matter to be decided by the Council will be by simple majority, conducted by show of hands.

If, before a vote is called, any Member present at the meeting requests it, the names for and against the proposal or amendment and those abstaining from voting will be taken down in writing and recorded in the

minutes of the meeting. Upon such request being received, the division bell shall be rung, and a period of one minute shall be allowed to elapse, when the doors of the Council Chamber shall be closed and no one admitted until the vote has been taken.

During the taking of the votes Members shall remain seated.

In the case of an equality of votes, the Lord Mayor shall have a second and casting vote.”

He pointed out that the existing Standing Order provided a simple mechanism whereby any single Member could require a vote to be recorded. If the Committee was minded to amend the Standing Order as requested, then this would inevitably result in the meetings taking longer to complete. Typically, each recorded vote took about seven or eight minutes to complete. Over the year from June 2017 till May 2018, a recorded vote had been requested on 33 occasions, averaging three per meeting. The Council had operated, since it was established in 1973, by way of the existing Standing Order. The Committee might wish to consider if there is any purpose to be served by requiring every vote to be a recorded one rather than maintaining the existing system which permitted a recorded vote to be taken upon the request of a single Member.

If the Committee wished to amend the Standing Order, then the following wording was suggested:

“Subject to any statutory provisions to the contrary, any matter to be decided by the Council will be by simple majority, conducted by a recorded vote.

The names for and against the proposal or amendment and those abstaining from voting will be taken down in writing and recorded in the minutes of the meeting. Before the vote is taken, the division bell shall be rung, and a period of one minute shall be allowed to elapse, when the doors of the Council Chamber shall be closed and no one admitted until the vote has been taken.

During the taking of the votes Members shall remain seated.

In the case of an equality of votes, the Lord Mayor shall have a second and casting vote.”

If the Committee was in agreement then the recommendation would, in accordance with Standing Order 64, require to be ratified at the Council meeting on 1st October and confirmed at the meeting on 1st November.

Moved by Councillor McAllister,
Seconded by Councillor Long,

That the Committee agrees to amend Standing Order 24 to provide that all votes at a Council meeting be taken by way of a recorded vote and that the new Standing Order be set out as above.

On a vote by show of hands three Members voted for the proposal and eleven against and it was declared lost.

NILGA Annual Conference and Local Government Awards

The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 17th August, it had deferred consideration of the attendance of Members and officers at the NILGA Local Government Awards, which was being held at the Armagh City Hotel on 11th October, until the finalists had been shortlisted.

It was reported that confirmation had now been received that the Council had been shortlisted in three categories, namely, Best Local Authority Service Team – Property and Projects Team, Employee of the Year, Mr Colin Agnew, Community Parks Supervisor, and Best Local Authority Tourism Initiative – Belfast Waterfront. Accordingly, it was recommended that the Committee approve the attendance of the Chairpersons and the Deputy Chairpersons of the Strategic Policy and Resources, People and Communities Committees and the Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Halls Shareholders' Committee (or their nominees), together with appropriate officers at the awards dinner. The cost for attendance at the Awards dinner was £60 plus VAT per person and could be met from within existing budgets.

The Committee adopted the recommendation.

Recruitment Panel – Head of Commercial and Procurement Services

The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 17th August, it had approved the recruitment panel for the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services. Subsequently, Alderman Convery, who had been appointed to the panel, had indicated that he was no longer available for all of the dates and that the Committee would be required to appoint a replacement.

The Committee agreed that Alderman Convery be replaced by Councillor Graham on the Recruitment Panel for the post of Head of Commercial and Procurement Services.

Physical Programme and Asset Management

Reflection Room

The Committee considered the following report:

“1.0 Purpose of Report

- 1.1 To update Committee on a proposal to consider a Reflection Room in City Hall for visitors and staff.**

2.0 Recommendations

- 2.1 Having considered the limited demand for such a space together with the lack of a suitable space in City Hall and the amount of the various activities taking place in the building it is recommended that the Committee agrees not to pursue this proposal any further**

Main Report

Key Issues

- 3.1 Committee earlier this year asked that a report be brought back on the inclusion of a quiet room/room of reflection within the City Hall which could be used by persons of all faiths and none to facilitate the citizens of Belfast and further afield who wish to have private time out of the hustle and bustle of city life.**
- 3.2 Visitor footfall in the City Hall has dramatically increased over the years and, with the opening of the new exhibition area, the City Hall is now one of the most visited tourist attraction in Belfast. The City Hall is one of the busiest buildings in the city and the many activities which take place from weddings, to events, to demonstrations, to tourist visitors, to council business epitomises the hustle and bustle of the city. Given this the City Hall may not be the optimum location for a proposed reflection room.**
- 3.3 Consideration has also been given to the demand for such a facility and no demand has been evidenced. Although visitors arrive from all parts of the world, discussions with the front line staff including the receptionists and telephonists, indicate there has been very few requests to provide a Reflection Room in the City Hall. On the very few occasions when a request has been made staff have directed the individual to another location in the city or given them the option of going to the Reflection Space which is already located in Room 14 in the new Exhibition area.**
- 3.4 Committee is asked to note that there also have been no requests from staff to provide such a facility in any of the BCC city centre office buildings as there are ample other**

type of provision including meeting rooms spaces. The City Hall grounds also offer quieter areas at times on both East and West wings.

3.5 In addition to the general business of City Hall itself and the lack of demand for a reflection room there is also very limited space in the building. Space in the City Hall is at an absolute premium with the additional facilities that have already been or which are currently being provided e.g. new exhibition area on the ground floor, the new Changing Places facility which will be installed shortly, the new family room facility etc. In addition, there have been further demands placed on the remaining space left in the City Hall by the need to find accommodation for the increased number of independent members and new directors. From time to time there are also temporary arrangements for exhibitions, conferences etc. which require a degree of flexibility in terms of the use of space.

3.6 Given all the above it is recommended that that the Committee agrees not to pursue this proposal any further and that if requests are made for quiet space that these continue to be directed to other suitable locations within the building or externally.

3.7 Financial/Resource Implications

There would be costs involved with relocating staff, finding new and/or additional accommodation and of course fitting out an appropriate Reflective Room which have not so far been estimated.

3.8 Equality and Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment

There are no legal requirements on Belfast City Council to provide such a facility in any of its public buildings. However providing one may be welcomed by a number of the faith bodies or alternatively could create demand for particular faith based facilities raising further issues regarding the council's powers."

The Committee agreed not to proceed with a proposal to establish a Reflection Room in the City Hall for visitors and staff.

Physical Programme Update

The Committee considered the undernoted report:

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues

1.1 The Council’s Physical Programme covers over 200 live regeneration projects across a range of funding streams including the Capital Programme, Leisure Transformation Programme, LIF, BIF, SOF (Social Outcomes Fund) and the projects which the Council is delivering on behalf of other agencies. This report provides an update for Members on the Physical Programme.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to –

- **note that a tour of a number of physical projects (both completed or underway) has been scheduled for Saturday 22nd September - the proposed itinerary for the site visits is attached at Appendix 1. All Members are encouraged to avail of this tour in order to gain an understanding of the scale and complexity of the Council’s physical programme**
- **agree that a series of Party Group briefings on the Physical Programme are undertaken in October**

Project Updates

- **Capital Programme - Fleet Programme 2019/2020 and 2020/2021 – note the Fleet Programme for 2019/2020 and 2020/2021 and agree that the necessary procurement processes are initiated with the delegation of subsequent evaluation and award processes to the Director of Property & Projects**
- **Leisure Transformation Programme - Robinson Centre - endorse the recommendation from the East AWG that the skate park is removed from the agreed facilities mix and that the existing playground and proposed 5-a-side pitch are extended on the basis that this remains within the agreed budget envelope. Members are also asked to agree that the option of the local community managing the second 5-a-side pitch be investigated.**
- **Tropical Ravine – note that the Tropical Ravine won the NI RICS project of the year in June and will now go on to compete in the national final in November in London. Committee is asked to authorise the attendance of the Chair of the SP&R Committee and/or**

the People and Communities Committee (or Deputy Chairs or nominees) and appropriate officers at the awards ceremony

- DFC match funding - note that letters of offer from DfC has been received for a range of Council projects as at 3.8 below on the basis that this spend can be completed within this financial year and that these were projects that had already been agreed by the Council and would have been progressed
- Urban Villages – note that Committee had previously agreed that the Council would act as the delivery agent for a range of projects due to be funded under the Urban Villages initiative. Members are asked to note that letters of offer have now been received for the delivery of 8 projects this year (see 3.9 below) and that the Council continues to be in discussions with UV on a further range of projects

3.0 Main report

Key Issues

- 3.1 Members will be aware that the Council runs a substantial physical programme covering over 200 projects under a range of funding streams including the capital programme, BIF and LIF together with the projects that it is delivering on behalf of other agencies including the Executive Office and the Department for Communities. There are currently approx. 200 ‘live’ projects on the physical programme worth in excess of £300m. This makes it one of the most visible and easily recognisable signs of the Council’s civic leadership role in the city. However it is also important to ensure that the physical programme is not simply about the stand-alone development of new facilities or assets but that all physical projects are an enabler in their own right towards the achievement of the City’s and the Council’s wider strategic objectives under the Belfast Agenda and the Corporate Plan.
- 3.2 Members previously agreed that, given both the current scale of the programme and the number of new Members, that a tour of a number of physical projects (both completed and underway) across the city is scheduled for all Members. Members are asked to note that this tour has been scheduled for tomorrow morning (Saturday 22nd September 9.30am-12.30pm with breakfast beforehand. A proposed itinerary for the tour is attached at Appendix 1. All Members are

encouraged to avail of this opportunity and to contact the Property and Projects Department if they are interested in attending.

- 3.3 Members are asked to note that moving forward the Council will face a number of challenges in respect of the physical programme including pressures on the capital financing budget; managing expectations in terms of delivery; that the Council's estate is ageing which increases pressure on maintenance budgets and competing demands for investment. Given the complexity of this issue and its implications for Members in terms of future decision making it is proposed that a series of Party Group briefings are undertaken in October on the Physical Programme.

Project Updates

- 3.4 *Capital Programme - Fleet Programme 2019-2020 and 2020/2021*– Members will know that the Council needs to run and maintain a substantial fleet in order to deliver its services. In March 2018 SP&R agreed to allocate £1.97m towards the Fleet Programme for 2019-2020 and £2.2m for 2020/2021. Members are asked to note that the Fleet Programme has been developed in conjunction with Council departments and reflects the service needs of the organisation. Members are asked to note the agreed Fleet Programme for 2019/2020 and 2020/2021 and agree that the necessary procurement processes are initiated with the delegation of subsequent evaluation and award processes to the Director of Property & Projects.
- 3.5 *Leisure Transformation Programme - Robinson Centre* - Members are asked to note that the agreed facilities mix for the Robinson Centre included a skate park at the rear of the site. The consultation feedback evidenced no demand for a skate park and in addition a number of concerns had been raised in relation to including this. This element has therefore not been submitted for planning.

On the basis of the consultation feedback the East AWG, at its meeting on 6th September, agreed that the skate park should be removed from the agreed facilities mix for Robinson and that the existing playground and proposed 5-a-side pitch are extended on the basis that this remains within the overall agreed budget envelope. SP&R Committee is asked to endorse this recommendation. Members are also asked to agree that the option of the local community managing the second 5-a-side pitch be investigated.

- 3.6 Capital Programme - Tropical Ravine – Members will recall that they were advised in June that the recently renovated and re-opened £3.7m Tropical Ravine project had won the prestigious Northern Ireland RICS project of the year with the judges noting *‘The Tropical Ravine was unanimously supported as Project of the Year. Its sensitive conservation approach was professional, and the partnership created of caring community groups and the Heritage Lottery Fund added strength and injected a variety of views, often conflicting, and aspirations which collectively have transformed this neglected overgrown corner of Botanic Gardens into a visitor attraction with an amazing story to be absorbed at leisure’*. The Tropical Ravine will now go on to compete in the national final in November in London. Committee is asked to authorise the attendance of the Chair of the SP&R Committee and/or the People and Communities Committee (or Deputy Chairs or nominees) and appropriate officers at the awards ceremony

Externally funded initiatives

- 3.7 Members will be aware that over the past couple of years the Council has been requested to deliver a series of capital projects under a number of externally funded initiatives including the Social Investment Fund (SIF) and Urban Villages (UV) on behalf of the Executive Office together with projects on behalf of the Department for Communities. These requests recognise both the successful track record of the Council as a delivery agent for capital projects and also the uniquely placed role of the Council as a civic leader in the city.
- 3.8 Department for Communities- Match funding – Committee is asked to note that a couple of months ago the Department for Communities (DfC) approached the Council regarding the potential to match fund a range of Council projects with the proviso that these had to be projects which were already approved by the Council, that DfC would be a minority funder and that the money could be spent within this financial year. Due to these restrictions Members are asked to note that only a small number of Council projects were identified as being suitable and that letters of offer for match funding towards the following projects have been received –

Project Title	DfC funding
City Hall – Development of a Changing Places Facility	£37,000
City Hall– Lighting on the trees in the grounds of City Hall	£36,000
Hammer Playground – development of the playground	£137,000
Playground Refurbishment—Glenbank	£72,000

Project Title	DFC funding
Playground Refurbishment—Duncairn	£67,000
Playground Refurbishment—Orangefield	£93,000
Gasworks – Upgrade the streetscapes, improve accessibility	£102,000
Old Golf Course Road - New playground, environmental improvements and upgrades to open space	£288,512
Blacks Path (Dunmurry Station Footpath)	£26,000

Members are further asked to note that a number of other projects are under consideration include upgrades to the existing facility at White Rise; Cathedral Gardens - Relocation of the Buoys; Grace Family Centre; Cancer Lifeline and Paisley Park. In regard to White Rise Members are asked to agree that the option of the local community managing the upgraded facility be investigated.

- 3.9 Urban Villages - Members previously agreed that the Council acts as the delivery agent for a range of projects under the Urban Villages initiative on behalf of the Executive Office. At this stage the list of projects was unknown. Members are asked to note that letters of offer have now been received for a range of projects which have profiled spend for this year and that officers are now working on these.

Project Title	Total LOO
Colin Allotments & Healthy Living Centre	£64,709.00
Footprints Women's Centre	£80,133.00
Benview Community Centre Refurbishment	£79,360.50
The Foundry Training Café	£148,062.00
Short Strand CF - Play Area	£112,427.00
Glenbryn Playground	£474,192.00
The Diamond Project	£185,297.00
John Paul II Youth Club	£127,970.00
Total	£1,272,150.50

Members are also asked to note that officers are continuing to work with the UV team and it is anticipated that further LOOs will be received. Many of the proposed future projects

on the UV lists either align closely to ongoing Council initiatives or to projects already being funded or proposed for funding by the Council under other funding streams including LIF/BIF/SOF.

3.10 Financial & Resource Implications

Financial – Fleet Programme and Robinson are both agreed projects on the Council’s capital programme

Resources – Resources from Property & Projects and appropriate departments in working up proposals in conjunction with groups.

3.11 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment

All capital projects are screened as part of the stage approval process.”

The Committee adopted the recommendations.

Assets Report

The Committee granted approval to the following:

i) Unit Letting at Smithfield Market

Functional responsibility for dealing with property issues in relation to the letting of Units at Smithfield Market rests with the Director of Property and Projects. Approval of the letting terms for the Units are to be undertaken by the Director under the scheme of delegation, on the basis that the terms are reported retrospectively to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee. The Committee accordingly noted the list of Unit Lettings at Smithfield Market.

ii) Parkgate Avenue Car Park – Licence Agreement

The grant of a licence to Peter Boyle and Ciara Denvir for a right to pass and repass across Parkgate Avenue Car Park on the terms outlined below.

iii) Little Victoria Street – Licence Agreement

The grant of a licence to Clear Channel NI Ltd at Little Victoria Street Car Park for an advertising site on the terms outlined in the report.

iv) Knockbreda Cemetery, 17 Saintfield Road - Grant of Easement and Land Transfer

Mutual Grants of Easement and an exchange of land with the owner of a private dwelling within the grounds of Knockbreda Cemetery to regularise a situation, which has existed for more than 20 years.

v) St Mary Magdalene Parish Church, Donegall Pass - Grant of Right of Way to Trustees

The grant of a Right of Way to the Trustees of St Mary Magdalene Parish Church, to secure an emergency exit through the Rev Robert Bradford Memorial Park.

Area Working Update

The Committee:

Area Working Group Minutes

Approved and adopted the minutes of the meetings of the Area Working Groups (AWG) as follows:

East – 16th August and 6th September; North – 20th August; West-23rd August; and South - 30th August.

Belfast Investment Fund

Agreed the recommendation from the East Area Working Group in respect of BIF as set out below:

Project	Recommendation
BIF042 – Bloomfield Presbyterian Church	Add as Stage 1 – Emerging project

Local Investment Fund

Noted that North Area Working Group had approved that the funding agreement under NLIF023 – Fortwilliam and Macrory Church Hall be novated to the to the 174 Trust.

North Area Working Group

Endorsed the recommendation from the North Area working Group that a proposal received in respect of community management of the Girdwood Youth Space be deferred and that the current management arrangements continue.

Finance, Resources and Procurement

Belfast City Council Statement of Accounts 2017-18

The Director of Finance and Resources submitted for the Committee's consideration the following report:

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee, the Statement of Accounts of the Council, including the Annual Governance Statement, for the period ending 31 March 2018.

1.2 The Statement of Accounts are an important element of the council's overall corporate governance framework as they provide assurance to Members and ratepayers on the stewardship of the council's finances and its financial position.

1.3 The Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018, as attached, have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 based on International Financial Reporting Standards and the Department for the Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 05/18 dated 9 March 2018.

1.4 I can confirm that the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been prepared in the form directed by the Department for the Communities and in my opinion the Statement of Accounts give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to

- Approve the Council's Statement of Accounts and incorporated Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018.**
- Agree that this paper should not be subject to call-in (as indicated above) because it would cause an unreasonable delay which would be prejudicial to the Council's and the public's interests given that the statement of accounts must be published by 30th September 2018.**

3.0 Main report

Key Issues

Audit Opinion

3.1 It is the Local government Auditors' opinion that:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-18, of the financial position of Belfast City Council as at 31 March 2018 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
- the statement of accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities directions issued thereunder; and
- the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Department for Communities directions made under the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and
- the information given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 is consistent with the financial statements.

Reserves

3.2 General Fund

The credit balance on the General Fund has increased to £24,408,596 (of which £10,738,347 relates to specified reserves). The movement on the reserves balance is summarised in Table 1 below:

Table 1: Summary of Reserves Position

Opening Balance	£21.0m
In year movement in reserves	£ 3.4m
Closing Balance	£24.4m
Specified Reserves at year end	£10.7m
Balance Available	£13.7m

3.3 Capital Fund £25,669,445

The Capital Fund is made up of the Belfast Investment Fund (£4,080,715). The fund has been created to support key partnership projects to regenerate Belfast and help lever substantial funds from other sources, the Local Investment Fund (£2,301,028) to fund smaller local regeneration projects., the City Centre Investment Fund (£15,287,702) to support the Belfast City Centre Regeneration Investment Plans, the Social Outcomes Fund (£4,000,000) to support City Centre projects which might not generate a direct financial return but would enhance the overall City Centre offer and support and attraction of investment.

3.4 Leisure Mobilisation Fund £1,704,334

This fund is to support the Leisure Transformation Programme and will cover programme level costs including communications, engagement and procurement costs.

3.5 Capital Receipts Reserve £4,739,457

These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets and which have not yet been used to finance capital expenditure.

3.6 Other Fund Balances and Reserves £867,527

This relates to the Election Reserve (£513,919) which has been set up to smooth the cost of running council elections, the BWUH Subvention Fund (£169,638) to support national and international organisations in bringing their conferences to Belfast and the BWUH Sinking Fund (£183,970) to support planned maintenance and future capital works at the new exhibition centre.

3.7 Debt

The overall level of trade debtors had decreased over the previous 10 years, reducing from £10m at 31 March 2008 to £3.8m at 31 March 2018. An analysis of trade debtors, inclusive of VAT, for the last two years is shown below:

Table 2 : Analysis of Trade Debtors

	31 March 2018	31 March 2017
Less than three months	£2,859,979	£3,305,930
Three to one year	£154,081	£111,596
More than one year	£736,633	£789,382
Total	£3,750,693	£4,206,908

3.8 Creditors

The Department for Communities has set councils a target of paying invoices within 30 days. During the year the council paid 58,319 invoices totalling £142,055,044.

- 3.9** The average time taken to pay creditor invoices was 21 days for the year ended 31 March 2018. The Council paid 39,355 invoices within 10 days, 51,403 invoices within 30 days, and 6,916 invoices outside of 30 days. The council endeavours to process invoices as quickly as possible and has an improvement plan to support this process.

3.10 Annual Governance Statement (AGS)

The Statement of Accounts include Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for the year 2017/18, which has been prepared in line with the Accounts Directive provided by the Department for Communities, NIAO guidance and is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government'. Specifically the AGS sets out:

- scope of responsibility of the Council in relation to governance
- the purpose of the governance framework
- the governance framework in place
- review of effectiveness of the governance framework
- significant governance issues to be disclosed.

- 3.11** The AGS is approved by the Chair of the Strategic Policy and Resources, the Chief Executive and the Director of Finance and Resources. It is subject to review by the LGA (NIAO) as part of their annual audit.

3.12 Financial & Resource Implications

As outlined above.

Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment

None.”

The Committee adopted the recommendations.

Contracts for Award

The Committee:

- approved the public advertisement and acceptance of tenders as listed in Appendix 1, Table 1, through the Council's electronic procurement system.
- granted delegated authority to the appropriate Director using pre-agreed criteria to accept the most economically advantageous tender.
- allowed month by month extensions where contracts were under review as outlined in Appendix 1, Table 2
- agreed to accede to Standing Order 55(a) exceptions in relation to contracts by direction of the council acting on recommendations of a Chief Officer that the exception is justified in special circumstances for the contracts laid out in 3.7 and Appendix 1, Table 3.
- noted the contract awarded as per Appendix 1, Table 4

Appendix 1 - Schedule of tenders for consideration

Table 1 – New tenders

Title of tender	Senior Responsible Officer	Proposed contract duration
Autocad Subscription Services	R Cregan	5 years
Replacement of boilers at Belfast Zoo Elephant House & Gorilla /Chimp House and calorifier hot water unit at City of Belfast Playing Fields	G Millar	4 months
Replacement of windows to Cherryvale PF Changing Pavilion, Sandy Row CC& Tullycarnet CC	G Millar	4 months
Measured Term Contract for repair, maintenance & minor works to Building Energy Management Systems	G Millar	1 year plus two

Title of tender	Senior Responsible Officer	Proposed contract duration
Ormeau Park replacement of metal railings on Park Road from playground to Ormeau Golf Club	G Millar	3 months
Term Contract for kitchen extract canopy assessment, cleaning of cooking area protection	G Millar	1 year plus three
Measured Term Contract for wet trades and general small building works	G Millar	1 year plus two
Term Contract for legionella monitoring & risk management	G Millar	1 year plus two
Courier Service	G Millar	Up to 5 years
Financial Appraisals	G Millar	Up to 5 years
Supply & Delivery of Paint & Sundries (T1896)	G Millar	Up to 4 years
Frozen Food	J Walsh	2 years plus 1
Ambient Food	J Walsh	Up to 5 years
Supply & Installation of Signage	N Grimshaw	3 years

Title of tender	Senior Responsible Officer	Proposed contract duration
Supply & Delivery of Parks Seats	N Grimshaw	5 years
Supply and Delivery of Rubber Crumb	N Grimshaw	3 years
Compactor Maintenance	N Grimshaw	3 years
Hire & Maintenance of Portable Toilets	N Grimshaw	3 years
Off Street Car Parking Enforcement Services	N Grimshaw	3 years plus 1
Off Street Car Parking Barrier Service	N Grimshaw	10 years
Supply & Delivery of Forced Bedding Bulbs	N Grimshaw	Up to 5 years
Mattress Recycling	N Grimshaw	3 years plus 1
Roll-on Roll-off Skip Maintenance	N Grimshaw	3 years plus 1
Supply and Delivery of Grounds Maintenance Plant & Equipment	N Grimshaw	Up to 5 years
Entertainment for Parks Events	N Grimshaw	Up to 5 years
Managed Service for Energy	R Cregan	Up to 5 years
Construction of Employment Academy	A Reid	1 year with the option to renew for a further year

Table 2 – Contracts for extension of contract period

Title of Tender	Director Responsible	Proposed Extension
T1365 - Framework for the Delivery of Manned Security Services to Belfast City Council	J Walsh	Month by month until new contract is in place
T1595 Supply, Delivery and Fitting of Hydraulic Hoses	N Grimshaw	Ext to 18 Nov 2018 until new tender is in place
T1577 Administration and Delivery of First Aid Training	J Walsh	Month by month until new contract is in place

Table 3 Direct Award Contracts (Single Tender Action)

System / product	Supplier	Estimate
Tender for the Removal of Bonfire and Associated Material	Restricted	Restricted
Installation and Storage of Christmas Lights	BCCM	£70,000 (part contribution)

Table 4 Contracts Awarded (April - Aug 2018 inclusive)

Title of Contract	Successful Contractor	Senior Reporting Officer	Contract Duration
Supply and delivery of animal feed for Belfast Zoo (T1814)	Dietex International and Dodson & Horrell	N Grimshaw	1 year with the option to renew annually for a further 2 years
Supply and delivery of frozen and live animal feed (T1852)	WD Meats Ltd (Lot 3 only)	N Grimshaw	4 years
Supply and delivery of 26T RCV with Bin Lift (T1854a)	Denis Eagle Ltd via YPO framework	N Grimshaw	3 years with the option to renew for a further year
Peace IV Marking the Decade of Centenaries(T1857)	Corrymela Community	N Grimshaw	4 years

Title of Contract	Successful Contractor	Senior Reporting Officer	Contract Duration
Belfast Bikes Sponsorship (T1863)	Belfast Harbour Commission/Just Eat	A Reid	3 years
Digitisation of Building Control Records (T1865)	Digital Scanning Services Ltd	A Thatcher	1 year with the option to renew for a further 3 years
Tender for the delivery, erection and dismantling of marquees (T1866)	North Down Marquees Ltd	D Durkin	1 year with the option to renew for a further 3 years
Tender for the supply of bottled and mains fed water (T1867)	Irish food & Beverage Ltd and All water Systems Ltd	G Millar	3 years
Design, delivery and management of Twilight Market (T1868)	Event-Ful Company	D Durkin	1 year
Tender for the provision of a taxi service (T1869)	Value Cabs Ltd	G Millar	3 years
Tender for consultancy services for the development of a business case for investment in infrastructure (T1871)	Ove Arup & Partners	A Reid	2-3 years
Animal Healthcare at Belfast Zoo (T1872)	Jubilee Veterinary Clinic	N Grimshaw	Up to 5 years
Supply and delivery of frozen fish to Belfast Zoo (T1883)	Marine Nutrition Ltd	N Grimshaw	1 year with option to renew for a further 2 years
Supply and delivery of playground equipment (T1849)	Allplay Ireland Ltd; Garden Escapes Ltd; Haffey Sportsgrounds Ltd; Hawthron Heights Ltd; Play & Leisure services Ltd & Spraoi Linn Ltd	N Grimshaw	1 year with option to renew for a further 2 years
Provision of consultancy service for technical and procurement advisors for the delivery of LFFN (T1874)	Farrpoint Ltd	R Cregan	1 year with the option to renew for a further 3 years

Title of Contract	Successful Contractor	Senior Reporting Officer	Contract Duration
Supply and delivery of crew and day cabs with beaver tails/box bodies (T1884)	NI Trucks Ltd	N Grimshaw	3 years
Event management and support services for MIPIM 2019 (T1886)	Lanyon Communications	N Gallagher	1 year
Supply, delivery, installation and refurbishment of free standing litter bins (T1890)	Unicorn Containers Ltd	N Grimshaw	1 year with option to renew for a further 2 years
Tender for the provision of play equipment inspections at BCC sites (T1892)	Play Services Ireland Ltd	N Grimshaw	1 year with the option to renew for a further 4 years
Consultancy services for a strategic sites assessment (T1897)	ARUP Ltd	C Reynolds	1 year
Delivery of procurement operating model and sourcing programme (T1904)	Performance Purchasing Ltd	D Durkin	4 months with option to renew on a monthly basis
Maintenance of housing benefits software & support (NIHE managed service contract)	Northgate	R Cregan	1 year
Maintenance of mapping agreement LPS	LPS Ordnance survey	R Cregan	1 year
Premier Support (Gold)	Microsoft	R Cregan	1 year
Oracle Site Licence	Oracle	R Cregan	1 year
Maintenance & support of the travel & subsistence system	Selima	R Cregan	18 months
Maintenance & support of CIVICA APP (Flare)	CIVICA	R Cregan	3 years
Maintenance & support of Vendor Invoice Management	VIM	R Cregan	4 year

Title of Contract	Successful Contractor	Senior Reporting Officer	Contract Duration
Energy Management	M&C Energy Group Ltd	G Millar	6 months
Contract for Kerbside recycling	Bryson recycling	N Grimshaw	1 year
Development of a bespoke inclusive growth framework for BCC	Metro Dynamics	J Tully	1 year
Contract for the Annual Property Asset Valuation	Land & Property Service (LPS)	G Millar	5 years
Contract for Provision of and access to legal material & research	Lexis Nexis	J Walsh	3 years
Waterproofing for WFH Roof (T1909)	Gordon & Co	G Millar	1 year
Contract for admission to Risk Avoidance Danger Awareness Resource Centre (T1908)	RADAR	N Grimshaw	3 years
Tender for the removal of bonfire and associated material	Restricted	N Grimshaw	1 year
Installation and storage of Christmas lights	BCCM	A Reid	1 year

Equality and Good Relations

Minutes of the Meeting of Shared City Partnership

The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of the Shared City Partnership of 10th September and agreed to the following:

Update on Bonfire and Cultural Expression Programme

To note the contents of the report in relation to the update on the Bonfire and Cultural Expression Programme, including a list of groups who had received funding to the 2018 programme, the findings from the monitoring and valuation report and the details of the Review Panel who considered the participation of groups who failed to meet all of the programme guidelines.

Response to the International Fund for Ireland (IFI) Peace Walls Consent Paper

To approved the Council's response to the IFA Peace Walls Programme.

Request for Nomination to NI Strategic Migration Partnership/NILGA Working Group

To approve the appointment of both the Chairperson and the Deputy Chairperson of the Shared City Partnership being nominated to sit on the above mentioned Working Groups.

Good and Harmonious Working Environment: Clarification on the Legislation

The City Solicitor reminded the Committee that, at the Council meeting on 3rd July, 2018, at the request of a Member, the Chief Executive had undertook to submit to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee a report providing clarification on the legislation governing the display in the workplace, including the Council Chamber, of clothing or other items which might be seemed to be offensive.

A report outlining the current legislation and guidance had been circulated for Members' consideration and the conclusions are set out hereunder:

- The City Hall, including the Council Chamber, should be considered a workplace environment given that staff are situated and working within these locations. In addition, they are used by clients, customers, third parties and members of the public. Therefore, the good and harmonious environment is required to be promoted within these settings by all who use them.
- While there is no definitive or exhaustive list about what is deemed offensive given the variety of emblems etc. which existed and the fact that context often plays a part, the current Belfast City Council Joint Declaration of Protection and the guidance from the Equality Commission should be taken into consideration along with the duty to promote equality and good relations.

- In addition, as outlined in the Code of Conduct for Councillors, the promotion of a culture of respect, equality and trust and the embracing of diversity in all its forms should be sought.
- Furthermore Members should display civic leadership on compliance with Section 75 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998 and how we promote equality of opportunity and good relations.

The City Solicitor pointed out that Council meetings were required to be open to the public and took place in a workplace environment. He referred to the duties which arose in respect of Section 75 and the Code of Conduct which required Councillors to have regard to the equality duty and the Council's Equality Scheme. He explained that the Council, in agreement with trade unions, had a policy in line with the Equality Commission Guidance on promoting a good and harmonious working environment, within this the following items were regarded as unacceptable:

- Football garments;
- Badges/insignia linked to paramilitary, political or fraternal organisations;
- Poster or displays linked to the above.

Accordingly, in line with the guidance and agreements with trade unions, he recommended that Councillors attending meetings adopt a dress code in keeping with the Equality Commission Guidance and the Council's agreement with trade unions.

The Committee adopted the recommendation.

Annual Report to Equality Commission for Northern Ireland

The Committee was advised that, as required by Section 75 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998, the Council had to report annually to the Equality Commission for Northern Ireland on the progress of the implementation of its Equality Scheme. Accordingly the City Solicitor submitted the annual report which outlined the progress on actions identified to promote equality of opportunity and good relations for the period April 2017 – March 2018.

The Committee approved the Council's annual report for submission to the Equality Commission for Northern Ireland for 2017 – 2018.

Rural Needs - Annual Monitoring Report

The Committee was advised that the Council had a new statutory duty under the Rural Needs (NI) Act 2016 to consider rural needs in the development of new policies, plans or strategies or in any service design/delivery decisions. The City Solicitor pointed out that the rural population of Belfast was approximately 1,484 people comprising the small settlements of Edenderry, Hannahstown and Loughview.

The requirement to monitor and report applied to all Northern Ireland departments and district councils from 1st June 2017. The Council was required under section 3(1) of the Act to:

- Compile information on the exercise of its functions under section 1(1) of the Act;
- Include that information in their annual report; and
- Send that information to Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs on the Rural Needs Annual Monitoring Return.

The Committee approved the Council's Annual Monitoring Return to the Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs for 2017-18.

Operational Issues

NILGA Consultation – “Devolution within Northern Ireland”

The Committee deferred consideration of the report for a period of one month to enable those Parties who so wished to receive a briefing.

Requests for use of the City Hall and the Provision of Hospitality

The Committee approved the recommendations made in respect of applications received up to 11th September, 2018 as set out in the following appendix:

NAME OF ORGANISATION	FUNCTION DATE	FUNCTION DESCRIPTION	CRITERIA MET	ROOM CHARGE	HOSPITALITY OFFERED	CIVIC HQ RECOMMEND
2018 EVENTS						
Belfast Family Support Hub	October 2018 <i>Date tbc</i>	Reception for family hub support- networking event for the 10 Belfast family hub organizations who each coordinate early intervention services and support for vulnerable families, children and young people.	C & D	No (Charity)	Yes - Tea Coffee and Biscuits	Approve No Charge Tea and Coffee Reception

**B
2068**

**Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Friday, 21st September, 2018**

NAME OF ORGANISATION	FUNCTION DATE	FUNCTION DESCRIPTION	CRITERIA MET	ROOM CHARGE	HOSPITALITY OFFERED	CIVIC HQ RECOMMEND
		Numbers attending -300				
OGCancer NI	November 2018 <i>Date tbc</i>	Launch and networking event to launch this new locally based charity supporting patients and careers of Oesophago – Gastric Cancer; meet workers and health professionals. Numbers attending -50	C & D	No (Charity)	Yes - Tea Coffee and Biscuits	Approve No Charge Tea and Coffee Reception
United Kingdom Town and Gown Association (UKTGA)	18 November 2018	Networking and Certificate Presentation evening – reception as part of a 2-day conference taking place at QUB in regard to campus issues. Numbers attending -50	A & B	No - Linked to Visit Belfast	Yes - Wine Reception	Approve Room Charge Wine Reception

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Friday, 21st September, 2018

B
2069

NAME OF ORGANISATION	FUNCTION DATE	FUNCTION DESCRIPTION	CRITERIA MET	ROOM CHARGE	HOSPITALITY OFFERED	CIVIC HQ RECOMMEND
Belfast Hospital School	23 November 2018	Celebration of achievement evening for young people unable to attend school due to physical or mental illness who missed awards at their schools. Numbers attending -100	C & D	No (Charity)	Yes - Tea Coffee and Biscuits	Approve No Charge Tea and Coffee Reception
2019 EVENTS						
Aisling Events	1 February 2019	8th Annual Blackboard Awards – Presentation awards ceremony to honor 40 teachers from Primary and Post Primary schools in Belfast city as well as Principals and classroom assistants. Numbers attending – 140	C	Yes - £300	No	Approve Room Charge No Hospitality
VIRSA NI	7 April 2019	Vaisakhi Celebration – of the harvest festival in Punjab (India). The event will have cultural performances, food, music and dance for	C&D	No (Community)	No <i>(they have specific dietary requirements)</i>	Approve No Charge No hospitality

**B
2070**

**Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Friday, 21st September, 2018**

NAME OF ORGANISATION	FUNCTION DATE	FUNCTION DESCRIPTION	CRITERIA MET	ROOM CHARGE	HOSPITALITY OFFERED	CIVIC HQ RECOMMEND
		the local community				
Young Enterprise	11 April 2019	Young Enterprise Awards – Annual ceremony to celebrate the achievements of young people from across NI who have completed their flagship programmes. Numbers attending -350	C&D	No (Charity)	Yes - Shloer Reception	Approve No Charge Shloer Reception
NI Hospice	7 May 2019	Opening Reception of the Inaugural International Conference on Palliative Dementia Care– reception as part of a 3-day conference Numbers attending -300	A & B	No (Charity)	Yes - Wine Reception	Approve No Room Charge Wine Reception
Benenden Health	20 June 2019	Reception for Benenden Health (Not for profit organization) who provide healthcare assistance as part of their a	A & B	No Linked to Visit Belfast	Yes - Wine Reception	Approve No Room Charge Wine Reception

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Friday, 21st September, 2018

B
2071

NAME OF ORGANISATION	FUNCTION DATE	FUNCTION DESCRIPTION	CRITERIA MET	ROOM CHARGE	HOSPITALITY OFFERED	CIVIC HQ RECOMMEND
		2-day conference at Belfast Waterfront. Numbers attending -350				
Royal Statistical Society	3 September 2019	Welcome Reception for the RSS 2019 Conference – Reception as part of four day international conference held in Belfast Waterfront. Numbers attending -300	A & B	No (Charity)	Yes - Wine Reception – <i>linked to Visit Belfast</i>	Approve No Charge Wine Reception
2021 EVENTS						
Conference Partners International	8 September 2021	Reception and Dinner for 2021 Mass Spectrometry School - Reception as part of five day conference held in University Of Ulster. Numbers attending -100	A & B	Yes - £115	Yes - Wine Reception	Approve Room Charge Wine Reception

**B
2072**

**Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Friday, 21st September, 2018**

**Minutes of the Meeting of the
Audit and Risk Panel**

The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk Panel of 11th September.

**Minutes of Budget and
Transformation Panel Meeting**

The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of the Budget and Transformation Panel of 13th September.

**Minutes of the Meeting of the
Active Belfast Ltd. Board**

The Committee noted the minutes of the meeting of the Active Belfast Limited Board of 10th September.

Chairperson